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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' Rf, PORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IN'DUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Indus Automotives Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 3l March 2019, the statement ofprofit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "lnd AS
fi nancial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 ('the
Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3l March 2019, and its profits
(including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report,
but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information, and accordingly, we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Il based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ofthis other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) ofthe Act with respect to the preparation ofthese Ind AS financial statements that give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance incl
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in acco
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Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements" section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.
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accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the lndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal hnancial controls, that w€re operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are fiee from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to ceas€ operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ii individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis ofthese Ind AS financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. W€ also:

Identifo and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe Ind AS financial stat€ments, whether

due to fraud or enor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override

of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modiff our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

.OEL 
do c.

Delhi

dAc



up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal

control that we identif, during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matt€rs that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other fegal and Regulalory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section I 43 ( 1 I ) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe said Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the

statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in

agreement with the books ofaccount;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting' - 
Standard; specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 3l March 2019 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 3l March 2019 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the'' 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure B";

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
'-. 

requiremints ofsection 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us'

the company has paid remuneration to its directors during the vear i1 acgordance with the

provisions oiand limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Actl and
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

(D The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iiD The company does not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection
Fund.

For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountanls
ICAI Firm Registration No.: N
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Parlner
Membership No.: 515984

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29 May 2019

N€w Delhi



ANNEXIJRE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDUS AUTOMOTI\'ES PRIVATE LIMITED

The Annexure refened to in our report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper

records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets

(property, plant and equipment).

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, th€ Company has a regular

programme of physical verification of its fixed assets (property, plant and equipment).

According to that programme, the Company has physically verified ce(ain assets during the

year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the

size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed during

physical verification offixed assets (property, plant and equipment).

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories have been physically

verified by the management at reasonable intervals;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and adequate in

relation to the size ofthe Company and the nature of its business;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

maintained proper records of its inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical

verification.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to c ompanies, firms, limited liability partnerships or

other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act 2013

('the Act'). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and

186 ofthe Act, with respect to loans and investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the directives issued by the Reserve

Bank of krdia and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act

and rules fiamed thereunder, are not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to

maintain the cost records under sub section (l) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company'
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(vii[a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax,

Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally

been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities, except

for slight delays in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service Tax,

Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 3l March 2019 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty ofExcise, Goods and Service
Tax and Cess which have not been deposited with th€ appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not defaulted in repayment ofdues to its bankers and financial institutions. The Company did not
have any borrowings from government and debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term

loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in

accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records oithe Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188

of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS

financial statemenis as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. Further,

according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records o1 the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotrnent or private

placement of shares or fulty or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(xiv) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(*r) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination ofthe
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be

registered under Section 45lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph

3(xvi) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

.For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.:

D Singhal
Partner
Membership No.: 515984

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29 May 2019

New Delhi t
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"ANNEXI]RE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS OF INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIYATE LI}trTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Indus Automotives Private
Limited ('lhe Company") as of 3l March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal confol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

d€tection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of intemal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining al understanding of intemal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedu; selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement ofthe Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS

Financial Statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that:-

(l) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe Company;
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(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures ofthe Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors ofthe Company; and

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or flaud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia.

.For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chafiered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No N

Dh r Singhal
Partnet
Membership No.: 5 15984

Place: New Delhi
Date:29 May 2019

rNew Delhi

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS Financial
Statements.



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment

O) Financial assets
(D Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Other financial assets

[c) Deferred tax assets (NetJ

Total non-current assets

(2) Current assets

[a) Inventories

[b) Financialassets
(i) Trade receivables
(iiJ Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity

[a) Equity share capital

[b] Other equity
Total equity

(21 Non-currentliabilities
(a) Financialliabilities

(D Borrowings
(b) Provisions
Total non current liabilities

3) Current liabilities
(a) Financialliabilities

[i) Borrowings

[ii) Trade payable

[iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total current liabilities

As at
3l March 2019

3

4

5

6

7

Note

9
10
11

238.02
40.32

1+6.98 177.40

t,720.90
7,443.90

97.25
44.27

2,146.22 1,756.76

409.63 487.39

2,407.O7

176.42
3 752.75 3 049.09

5,898.97 4,805.85

3,234.05
56.12
52.95

t2
13

52.50
2,O79.39

5 2.50
7,995.25

2,131.49 2,O47.75

t4
1s [a)

322.37
68.63

34 5.68

3 90.94 345.68

l6
17
18

19
1s [b)

497.70
2,55+.42

6t.69
273.43

48.10

499.24
1,519.63

3 0.63
2 08.08
154.84

3,376.14 2,412.42

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,898.97

Background & Significant Accounting Policies 1 &2
The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthe financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date attached
For Nagar Goel & Chawla For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regi stration No.: 0099

singhal abh Sindhu

4.80 5.8 5

D

Partner
Membership No.: 515984
Place iNew Delhi
Date:29th May 2019

Director
DIN:02291158

somvir Sindhu
Director
DIN:06680118

New Delhi
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If{DUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMTTED

Statement of profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Notc For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
3l March 2018

Income
I Revenue from operation
ll Other income
UI Total income (l+ll)

Mxpenses
Purchase ofstock in trade
Change in inventory
Employee benefit expenses
Finance cost
Depreciation
Other expenses
Total Expenses

20

21
6,065.95

7.28
5,908.85

702.92
6,O73.23 6,ot,..77

22
23
24

3

26

5,305.59
77.76

347.82
73.52
27.92

770.76

s,74+.73
131.33
42A35

78.O5

40.97
105.89

5 943.37

t29.86

5,929.32

42.45V Profit before tax (lII-lV)
VI Tax expense:

-Current tax
-Deferred tax charge/(credit)
-lncome tax for earlier years

VII Profit for the year (V-VI)

Vlll Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Fair valuation of Investment In shares
- Net actuarial gairs/(lossesl on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII-Vlll)

Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

(11 Basic
(2) Diluted

27

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,r 00

D Singhal
Partner
Membership No.: 515984
Place :New Delhi
Datet 29th May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

bh Sindhu

7

40.7 5

4.19
52.90

(24.86)
3.20

44.94 3L.24

84.92 5t.2L

(0.0 3J
16.7 6)
5.68

(1.08)

0.30

(0.03)

(0.01)

(0.78) (0.03)

84.14 51.18

1,6.77

76.77
9.7 5

9.7 5

Director
DIN: 02291158

Somvir Sindhu
Director
DIN:06680118

New Delhi
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

B) Cash from investing activities
Purchase ofpropefty, piant and equipment
Proceed from financial assets
Interest income
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed/[Repayment) of long-term and short-term borrowings
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

D) Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
E) Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning ofthe year
F) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end ofthe year

Dh Singhal
Pa

Membership N0.r 515984
Place :New Delhi
Dater 29th May 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
3l March 2018

129,86

27.92
7 3.52
14.63
(4.72)

82,45

40.96
78.05

(84.33)
241.21

36,81
1,035.19

77.7 6

(827.04)
1.39

717.12

2 51.18
376.46
131.33
457.54
(t6.84)

565.32
25.73

1,315.80
39.50

539.59 1,277.30

(3.s0)

{424.53)
4.7 2

[4.06]
(1,321.38)

4433
(423.31) (t,2+1.17')

(24.9t)
(7 3.s2)

2t.76
t78.0sl

(e8.43) (s6.8e)

17.45
38.27

(20.7 7)
5B.98

s6,t2 34.27

Notel
The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'lndirect method' as set out in the lnd AS 7 on 'Cash Flow Statements', as

specified in the Section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 ofthe Compallies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

As per our report ofeven date attached
For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chaftered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0099 Ld For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

(,

rabh Sindhu

Ez*
Director
DIN:02291158

Somvir Sindhu
Director
DIN:06680118

New Delhi

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/ooss) before tax
Adiustment for :

Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost
Provision for gratuity
Interest inaome
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Adiustment for r

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities & other current liability
Increase/ fDecreaseJ in trade payables
Decrease/ 0ncrease) in inventories
Decrease/ fincrease) in trade receivables
Decrease/ 0ncrease) in other financial assets & other cuffent assets & provisions
Cash Generated from operations
Taxes paid [net)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)



INNTIS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
St.,ment of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

ula.E share ca ital
52.50Balance as at l April 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year 2017-18
Balance as at 3l March 2018 52.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2018- 19

Balance as at 31 March 2019 52.50

Other equity
(refer note 13)

Items of other comprehensive
income/[oss)

TotalParticulars

Retained earnings
Remeasurement

of defined
benefit

Fair value of
equity

instruments
1,944.07

51,.21 (0.031
t,9+4.07

51,18
1,995.29 (0.03) 1,995.25

Balance as at the 1 April 2017
Profit/(lossJ for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2018

(0.03)
4.10 r4.BBl

t,995.25
84.7+

1,995.2A
84.92

2,O4O.20 4.O7 t4.88.) 2,O79.39

b. Other e ui

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the amount ofaccumulated earnings ofthe company

Other Components of Equity
Other Components of Equity consists of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/ asset, equity instruments fair valued through other
comprehensive income, net of taxes.
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY INFORMATION
Indus Automotive Private Limited [the'Company') is a domestic private limited Company incorporated in India. The
re8istered office ofthe company is located at 164, Najafgarh Road, Moti Nagar, shivaji Mar& New Delhi, India.
The Company is engaged in to carry on the business of trading otalltypes ofspare parts, RTes and lubricants.

2 Slgnificant Accounting Policies
a) Basis for preparation oflinancial Statements

Compliance with lnd AS
The separate financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") as per Companies 0ndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS))
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

Historical Cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and plan assets towards defined benefit plans, which are measured
at fair value.

b) Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items.
Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asse! as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and th; cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount ofany component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
Assets acquired but not ready for use are classified under Capital work in progress and are stated at cost comprising
direct cost and related incidental expenses.

c) Depreciation/Amortisation
Assets in the course ofdevelopment or construction and freehold land are not depreciated.
Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost ofan asset less its residualvalue. Depreciation is
provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a written down value
basis over its expected useful life fdetermined by the management based on technical estimates), as follows-
The estimated useful lives ofassets are as follows:

Buildings 30-60 years
Plant & Equipment 15-40 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 5-10 Years
Vehicles 6-10 Years
Computers and
softwares 3-5 years

Office Equipments 5 Years
Individual items of assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year ofacquisition.
Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from such
costs. The carrying amount ofthe remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss if the
next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life ofthe economic benefit.
when significant spare parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes in estimates,
ifany, are accounted for prospectively.
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

e) Financialinstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset ilr one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument in another entity,

Financial Assets

lnitial recognition
In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FyTPL), financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way tradesJ are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sellthe asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

(a) Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost ifthese financial assets are held within a business model
with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial
asset give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. lnterest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Financial Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income IFVOCI) if these financial assets are
held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, ilterest revenue and foreign exchange gains

and losses which are recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVoCI are measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

DelhiNz
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d) Leases
Leases where the company is a lessee and has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as

finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value ofthe leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate ofinterest on the remaining balance ofthe liability for each period.
Leases in which significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee
are classified as operating leases. Payment made under operatiog lease (net of any incentive received from the lessor]
are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on straight-line-basis over the period of the lease unless the payment are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increase.



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AIl amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

lmpairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind As 109, the company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL"] model for measurement and
recognition ofimpairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition ofimpairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. Ifcredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used ll in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference betlveen all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original ElR. Lifetime ECL
are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the erpected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion ofthe lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recorded as expense/ income in the
Statement ofProfit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards ofownership ofthe asset to another entity.

lf the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

Ifthe Company retains substantially allthe risks and rewards ofownership ofa transferred financialasset, the Company
continues to recognise the financiai asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Equity investments
All equity investments in the scope of lnd AS 109, Financial Instruments, are measured at fair value, For equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present the subsequent fair value changes in Other
Comprehensive Income [OCI]. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
There is no recycling ofthe amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL (fair value through profit and loss) category are measured at fair value
with all changes in fair value recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings and
payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at FyTPL
Financial liabilities at FVl PL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement ofProfitand
Loss.
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITEI)
Statement ofchanges in equityfor the year ended 31 March ZO19
(AIl amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to be made toreimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordancewith the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adiusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance ofthe guarantee. Subsequentlf trre tiatility is
measured at the higher ofthe amount ofloss allowance determined as per impairment requirements oflnd As 109 andthe amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the statement ofProfit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using theEIR method Any difference between the proceeds [net oitransaction costs) and the settlement or redemption ofborrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement ofprofit and Loss.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are anintegral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is included as finance ;osts in the statement of profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantial'ly different terms, or theterms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition ofthe original liability and recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the Statement of profit and Loss.

Offsetting fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is acurrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, torealise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneousiv.

0 Fairvalue measurement
The Company measures financial assets and financial liability at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place eitherl
The lrincipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value of an asset or aliability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use wiren pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-6nancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another maiket participant lhat would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances andfor which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or iIldirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable For assets and Iiabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing catelorisation fbased on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach ieporting period.

The Company's Valuation team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITDD
statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

g) Inventories
Consumables, stores and spares are valued at lower ofcost and net realisable value; cost is computed on first-in-first out
basis. The cost ofinventories comprises all costs ofpurchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and slow/nonmoving stocks are duly provided for. Net
realisable value is estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

h) Cash and cash equivalents
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
term highly liquid i[vestments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

i) Cash flow
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa
non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payme[ts and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities
ofthe company or segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to know
amounts ofcash to be cash equivalents.

i) Recognitionoflncome
The Company earns revenue primarily from sale ofspare parts, tyres and lubricants.
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and whelr revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces lnd AS 1B Revenue and Ind
AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of
initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application [i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative
information in the statement ofprofit and loss is not restated i.e. the comparative information continues to be reported
under lnd AS 1B and lnd AS 11. The impact ofthe adoption of the standard on the financial statements ofthe Company is

insignificant.
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding
taxes or duties collected on behaifofthe government and reduced by any rebates and trade discount allowed.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before income is recognised.
i. Income is recognised on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and liabilities.
ii. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of rebates and discounts on transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the buyer. Sale ofgoods is recognised net ofsales tax, value added tax and GST.

iii. Revenue from services rendered is recognised on prorata basis in proportion to the stage of completion ofthe related
transaction.
iv. Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financialasset to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the

expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

v. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
vi. Rental income is recognised on a straightline basis over the period ofthe lease
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k) Employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Defi ned contribution plan
The Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme is determined based on a fixed
percentage of the eligible employees' salary and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis. The
Company has categorised its Provident Fund, labour welfare fund and the Employees State Insurance Scheme as a

defined contribution plan since it has no further obligations beyond these contributions.
Deffned benefit plan
The Company's liability towards gratuity, being a defined benefit plan are accounted for on the basis of an independent
actuarial valuation based on Proiected Unit Credit Method.
Service cost and the net interest cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects ofchanges in actuarial assumptions and are
recognised immediately in'other comprehensive iocome'as income or expense.

l) Borrowings and otler financial liabilities
Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs incurred).
Difference between the fair value and the transaction proceeds on initial recognition is recognised as an asset / liability
based on the underlying reason for the difference.
Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost usiDg the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are eliminated from the balance sheet when the obligatioD specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount ofa flnancial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in case oftransactions with shareholders.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at Ieast 12 months after the reporting period.

m) Trade receivables
A receivable is classified as a'trade receivable'ifit is in respect ofthe amount due on account ofservices rendered in the
normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment.

n) Trade payables
A payable is classified as a 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or
services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent Iiabilities for goods and services provided
to the Company prior to the end of the Rnancial year which are unpaid. These amounG are unsecured and are usually
settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

o) Taxation
i. Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

ii. Current income tax liabilities and/or assets comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reportilg periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable profit,
which differs from profit or Ioss in the financial statements. Calculation ofcurrent tax is based on tax rates and tax laws

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end ofthe reporting period. Deferred income taxes are calculated

using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax
bases.
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement ofchanges in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

iii. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary
difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company's forecast of future
operations results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused

tax loss or credit.

iv. Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component oftax income or expense in profit or loss,

except where they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case

the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

v. Tax credit is recognised in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT] as per the provisions of Section 115JAA of the
lncome Tax Act, 1961 based on convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within the statutory
time frame and is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

p) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Comparly has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the conhol
ofthe Company. Such liabilities are disclosed by way ofnotes to the financial statements.

qJ Segment Reporting
In the opinion of management, there is only one reportable segment i.e., Spare Part of Automobiles as envisaged by Ind
As 108 "segment Reporting". Accordingly, no disclouser for segment reporting has been made in the financial
statements.

r) Deferred Revenue alld Unbilled Revenue
Amounts received from customers or billed to customers, in advance of services performed are recorded as deferred
revenue under Other Current Liabilities. Unbilled revenue included in Other Financial Assets, represents amounts
recognised in respect ofservices performed in accordance with contract terms, not yet billed to customers as at the year

end.

s) Significant management,udgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
When preparing the financial statements, management makes a number of judgments, estimates and assumptions

about the recognition and measurement ofassets,liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty about these assumptions

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adiustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities

affected in future periods.

Depreciation and useful lives ofproperty, plantand equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account

their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values ofthe assets annually

in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and

residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated

technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted ifthere are significant changes from previous

estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable
Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a

provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the

amount and timing ofanticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitiSate the risk ofnon-
payment.
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lmpairment of non-fi nancial assets
ln assessing impairme[t, management estimates the recoverable amount ofeach asset or cash-generating unit based on

expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions

aboutfuture operating results and the determination ofa suitable discountrate.



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Provisions
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of
recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash outf'lows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account ofchanging facts and circumstances.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may
significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses

t) Defined contribution plan
Amount of Rs. 21.65 Lakh [31 March 2018 Rs.22.90 Lakh) pertaining to employers' contribution to provident fund,
pension fund, labour welfare fund and administration charges is recognized as an expense and included in "Employee
benefits " in Note 24.

u) Delined benefit plan:
Gratulty plan:
The Company operates a gratuity plan which provides lump sum benefits linked to the qualirying salary and completed
years of service with the Company at the time of separation. Every employee who has completed 5 years of continuous
service is entitled to receive gratuity at the time of his retirement or separation from the organization whichever is

earlier. However the condition of completion of 5 years of service is not applicable where separation is on account of
disability or death of an employee. The gratuity benefit that is payable to any employee, is computed in accordance with
the provisions of"The Payment of Gratuity Act,7972".

The Grahrity fund
The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance

Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars For the year
ended

31-Mar-19

For the year
ended

31-Mar-18
Changes in the present value qf
defi ned benefit obligation

Present value as at the beginning
ofthe year

lncluded in profit and loss
account
-Current service cost
-lnterest cost
.Past Service COST
-Benefits paid
lncluded in other
comDrehensive income
-Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising
from change in
. financial assumptions
' experience changes

Present value of the obligation

at the end ofthe year

65.64

9.54
5.09

Is.68)

7 4.59

52.32

9.24
4.0 5

65.64
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 March
2019

As at 31 March
2018

Present value of unfunded
obligations
Net liability

Amounts in Balance Sheet

Liability

Net liabilitv is bifurcated as

follows:
Long term
Shortterm
Net liability

68.63
5.96

74,59

65.64

65.64

65.64

59.7 2

5.92
65.64

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows.
Economic assumptions:
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary escalation rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the

market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and

the salary growth rate takes account ofinflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors oIl long term basis. The

assumptions used are summarized in the following table:

Particulars As at
31-Mar-18

Discount rate p.a.

Salary escalation rate p.a

7 .7 So/o

5.000/o

7 .7 So/a

5.00%

Demographic assumptionsl

Particulars As at
31-Mar-19

As at
31-Mar-18

Retirement age

Mortality ult table

Employee turnover

60 years

IALM (2006-
08) Ult table
21 - 50 years-

5o/o

60 years
rALM (2006-08)
Ult table
21 - 60 years-

5o/o

Sensitivity Analysis:
The key actuarial assumption to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to discount rate and fuhrre

salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end

ofthe reporting period arising on account ofan increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points

Particulars Year ended 3l March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018
Discount rate salary

escalation rate

Discount

rate

Salary

escalation rate
lncrease (decrease) on plus 100

bps
Increase (decrease) on minus
100 bps

68.36

IB1.Bs)

81.98

(68.1s)

59.91

(72.37)

72.49

(5e.72)

Although the analysis does not take account ofthe full distribution ofcash flows expected under the plan, it does provide

an approximation ofthe sensitivity ofthe assumptions shown.

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming

there are no other changes in market conditions at the reporting date.
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7 4.59

74,59

74.59

As at
31-Mar-19



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Expected maturity analysis
The expected maturity analysis ofdefined benefit obligation is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March
2019

As at 31 March
20ta

Less than l year 5.96 5.87
1-2 years 4.36

2-5 years 22.62 76.72
More than 5 years 64.42 60.60

The weighted average duration to the payment ofdefined benefit obligation is 18 years (31 March 2018: 20 yearsl.

RiskAnalysis:
The above defined benefit plan expose the Company the following risksr

i) Interest rate risk
The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. Ifbond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation will tend to increase.

ii) Salary inflation risk
Higher thaD expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

iii) Demographic riskr
This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,

disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and

depends upon the combination ofsalary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate

Fair value measurement
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value offinancial instruments (where active market quotes

are not available] and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how

market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as

vi) Roundlng ofamounts
All amounts disclosed in the 6nancial statements and notes have been rounded offto the nearest Lakhs as per the

requirement ofSchedule III, unless otherwise stated.

q
o

c.

r.

z

EL&

s.0sl

v) Events after reportiDg period
Adiusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.

The financial statements are ad,usted for such events before authorisation for issue.

Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-

adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

[All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

vii) Changes in Accounting Standards and other recent 0accounting pronouncements
lnd AS 12:
Amendment to lnd AS 12 'lncome Taxes': 0n March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited

amendments to Ind AS 12 'lncome Taxes'. The amendments require an entity to recognise the income tax consequences

of dividends as defined in lnd AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of

dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to

distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in pront or loss,

other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or

events. The amendment will come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The Company is

evaluating the effect ofthe above in the financial statements.

Appendir C to lnd AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs

["MCA") has notified the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to
lnd AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which clarifies the application and measurement requirements in

lnd AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be

recognized and measured by applying the requirements in Ind AS 12 based on the taxable profit (tax lossJ, tax bases,

unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective

for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is evaluating the effect of the above in the financial

statements.

Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
The amendments clariry that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current
service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for
the re-measurement. ln addition, amendments have been included to clarifythe effect ofa plan amendmen! curtailment
or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. Company does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs
The amendments clariR, that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its

intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the Funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the

capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Company does not expect any impact from this amendment.

Ind AS 109 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow

measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive

income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. Company does not expect this amendment to have any

impact on its financial statements.

EL&
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Iinancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2019

[AIl amounts ar€ in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plantand equipment

Particulars

Tangibleassets

Total tangible

Freehold land
office

Building

Computers and
data

processing
units

Furniture
and fittings v€hicles

omce
equipments

Plantand
machinery

51.66 s4.73 6.35
0.84

16.21
3.22

243.t4
4.06

1.42 tt.7a 100.71Balance as at 1April2017

Disposals
Balance as at 3l March 2018 51.66 s4.73 7.19 19.43 247.24LAz 11.70 100.71

Balanceas at3l March 2019 52.66 54.73 187 l1..7o 101.10 8.35 20 33 250.74

Balance as at 1April2018
Additions
Disposals

51.66
1.00

54.73 1.42

0.0s
11-70 7.79

1.16

19.43

0.90

247.24
3.50

0.44
5.16

0.73

o.47
t.72
2_6r

2.39

1.83

2.92

2.97

34.47
40.97

Balanceasat3lMarchzo18 5.60 1.2O 433 5460 4.22 589 75.A4

Balanceas at 1 April 2018
Depreciation during the year
Disposals

5.60

4.67
7.20
0.20

4_33

1.91

54.60
L7.22

4.22
t.37

5.89
2_SS

75.44
27.92

Balance as atSl March 20lg ' 7027 l,4O 624 71,U S

51.66
52.66

49.13
44.46

4.62

4.47
7.37

s.46
46-11
29_28

2.97

2.76
13.54
11.89

171.40
u6.94

&cl

+

t

t'
z

100.71
0.39

Accumulated depreciatio.
Balance as at 1April2017
Depreciation during the year

26.67
27.93

Carrying amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2018
Balance as at 3l March 2019



i, ,,SAUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2O19
(All amounts are inLakh[s), unless otherwise stated)

Loans (non-current)
(Unsecured, considered good unless otheiwise stoted)
---Measured at amortised cost
Intercorporate deposits

Other financial assets (non-current )
(Unsecured, considered good unless othetwise stoted)

Security deposits
Advance for which value to be received
Accrued interest on security deposit

7. Deferred tax assets (Net)
(i) The balances comprises temporary differences attributeble to

4 Investments(non-curent)

bl Investment in unquoted preference shares of other companies [at FVToCI] |

Swastik Power and Mineral Resources Plt Ltd
1,56,80,000 (Previous year: Nill preference shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

River Side Utilities Plt Ltd
2,46,410 (Previous year: Nill preference shares ofRs. 10/- each fullypaid up

Seaside Utilities Pvt Ltd
12,00,070 (Previous year: Nil) preference shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

3l March 2019 3l March 2018

10.87

1,700.41

5.85

3.77

1,720.90

5

6

As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

1,443.90
1,443.90

As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

46.? 4

191.24
0.04

97.10

0.15
23A.OZ 97 -25

As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

19.17
19.27

1.BB

21.70
22.51

40.32 44.21

Net deferred tax asset 10.32 44.21

(iil Movement in deferred tax
balances

NetBalance
As at

1Ap 12017

Recognised in
profit or loss

Recognised
in OCI

NetBalance

As at
3l March 2018

Recognised
in profit or

loss
Recognised in OCI

NetBalance

As at
31 March 2019

Deferred tax asset
Provision for $atuity
Property, plant and equipment
lnvestrnentin shares at fair
value

19.35

21.69
3.16

0.01 2L.70
22.57

(0.esl

13.24)

(1.s8)

1.88

t9.t'7
19.27

1.88

Defened tax liability

19.35 (4.1e) 0.3 0 40.32

Deferred tax asset fnetl 19.35 24.45 0.01 44,21 14,191 0.30 40.32

oEL &o+

z
2\
f'

I

al lnvestrnentinequityshares
Unquoted investnents in equity insEuments ofotler companies (at FVTOCII:
Sips utilities Pvt Ltd

1,50,088 [PrevYear: Nil] Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each tullypaid up

Deferred tax assets arising on account of
-Provision for gratuity
-Property, plant and equipment
{nvestrnent in shares atfair value

24.45 0.01 44.2!



INDU' AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
otes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

(volued at the lower oJcostor net realizable value)

Stores & spares

9 Trade recelvables
(Unsecured, considered good unless othetu/ise stoted)

Trade receivables*

*Above balances of trade receivables include balances with realted parties (refer note - 321

1O Cash, cash equivalents and other bankbalanc€s

8

11 Other currentassets

As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

409.63 487.39
409.63 447,39

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

3,234.05 2,407.01

Cash and cash equivalents
Ealance with banks
Cash in hand

31 March 2019 3l March 2018

47.34
4.79

31.92
6-35

31 March 2019
As at

31 March 2014
L6.37

8.61
2.24

25.73

18.02

a.z7
2.32

87.82

&

t'>z

StaffAdvance
Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Advance tax/ tds

__________.11!3A!_

56,13 34.27

s2.95 116.43



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
[All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

12 Share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and fuuy paid-up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

As at 31 March 2019
No. ofShares Amount No. ofShares Amount

550 000 55.00 550 000 5 5.00
550,000

525,000

5 5.00 5S0,000 5 5.00

52.50 525 000 52.50
525 000 52.50 525 000 52.5 0

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
No. ofShares Amount No. ofShares Amount

Equity Shares
Shares al the beginning ofthe year
Add: shares issued during the year
Total

525,000 52,50 52.50

525,000 52.50 525,

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.10 per share. All shares rank pari passu with

respect to dividend, voting rights and other terms, Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed,

if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case

of interim dividend. The repayment of equity share capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible

subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the

remaining assets ofthe Company after distribution ofall preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c) Share held by Holding Company
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up
held by:
Sindhu Trade Links Limited

No. ofShares o/o ofshares held No. ofShares 7o ofshares held

98.1,0o/o

98.l0o/o 515 000 98.7oo/o

d) Details of Equity shareholders holding more than 5yo shares in the company
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up No. of Shares 0/o of shares held No. of Shares o/n of shares held
held by:

Sindhu Trade Links Limited 515,000 98.70o/o 515,000 98.70o/o

515,000 98.10% 515

515 000 515 000 98.70o/o

e.
oo

d

z
r

t
Delhi

As at 31 March 2018

525,000

515,000

C,



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
otes to linancial statements for theyear ended 3l March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwlse stated)

13 Other equity

Total

14

Surplus in the statement ofprofitand loss
openingbalance
Add: Profft for the year
Add: Other Comprehensjve Income/[Loss) ofthe year
Closing balance

As at
31 March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

1,995.25
84.92

t0.78)

1,944.07
51.21
(0.03)

2,079.39 1,995.25

________Jp123e___

3l March 2018
Borrowings (non-current)
Measured at amortised cost

[,nsecured loans
Unsecured loan from others

15 (a) Provisions (non current)

Provision for gratuity

15 (b) Provisions (current)

Provision for income tax
Provision for gratuity

16 Bonowings (current)

Loans repayable on demand (secured)

31 March 2019 3l March 2018

6A_63

64.63

As at
31 March 2019

As at
3l March 2O1a

42.14
5.96

49.20
65_64

44.10 ts4.a4

As at
31 March 2019 3l March 2018

497.70 499.24
497.70 499.24

Footnote:

'+Nature ofsecurity
[1) Primary Secu ty: Hypothecation of entire stock in the possession oF M/s lndus Automotiv€ Private limited at all the godowns/premises/locations

Rawabhata, Himgiri Korba, Rai8arh, Gevra, Eilaspur, Ambikapuror any their Places including in transit or book debt outstanding or bills Receivables.
(21 Collateral security: (i) Equitabte Mortgage of Diverted Land and building (owned by Registered Sales Deed) situated at Khasra No 905, Area 3.25 Acres,

P.H.No 28, Block Pali, RNM Hardibazar, Vill. Tiwarta, Tehsil Katghora & Dist. Korba (C.G). Owned by: Mr' KarmPal Saharan s/o Satbir Singh Saharan, r/o C-L8,

Qaruda Nagar, Korba-Gevra Road, Gevra.

[ii) Equitable Mortgage ofLand and Building (Owned by Registered ldase deed, lease: Raipur Development Authority) situated at Part ofKh No 395, Plot No W1

97, Block No 11, Area 2152 Sq Feet, Vill. Rawahhata Under RDA's Dr Khubchand Baghel Transport Nagar Scherne, P.H.,No 100, R.l Circle' & T€hsil-Dharsiwa,

Dist Raipur, CC owsed by: M/S Dipka Transport, Proprietor Mr. Yashpal Saharan, S/o Satbir Singh Saharan. Equitable Mortgage ofDiverted open land [ov,rned
by way of Registered. Sales Deedl, Addressed at Khasra No 4313, PH No 19, ViUage Mopka [Near boundri€s ofVillage Bijcir and Behind Viv€kanand Colony) RNI

and Tehsil Bilaspur,Cc, Total Area 1.10 Acres. Owned by: Mr YashPal Saharan, S/o SatbirSingh Saharan.

(3) Personal Security: 1. Mr.Yashpal Sharan s/o Mr.Satbir Singh Saharan, Mr.Dhruv Khod s/o Mr.Hetram (hod, Mr.Saurabh Sindhu s/o Mr.Vir Sen Sindhu, Mr.
Somvir Sindhu s/o Mr.Vir Sen Sindhu and Mrs. Surabhi Cehlot w/o Mr. Aman Gehlot.

THIRD PARTYGUARANTEET Mr. Karampal Saharan s/o Mr. satbir Singh.

o

l'

oEL&

31 March 2019

322.37 345.6A
322.31 345.68



INDUS AUTOMOTIVIS PRIVATE LIMITED
lotes to financial statements forthe year ended 31 March 2019

[All amounts a]e in Lakh{s), unless otherwise stated)

17 Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises#
Dues to otherthan micro and smallenterprises

19 Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2019

As at
3l March 201a

167.78
2347.04

401.61
1,174.O2

__--_____JE5! _ 812.63

As at
3l March 2019 3l March 2018

Disclosure ofpayable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprise DevelopmentAcL 2006" is based on the information available with
the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received arom them on requests made by the
Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no
delays in payment made to such suppliers duringthe year or forany earlier years and accordingly there is no interestpaid or outstanding interest in this regard
jn respect ofpayment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

18 Otherflnancialliabilities(current) As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2O1a

Salary and wages payable

Audit fee payable
59.32

2.37
2431

2.32
61.69 30.63

Statu!ory dues payable
Advance irom customer

As at
3l March 2019

As at
3l March 2018

40.18
t73.66

58.50
149.58

EL&

z
r'

!

al The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end ofthe year 167.74 401.61

b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end ofthe year

cl The amount ofinterest paid by the buyer in terms ofsection 16 ofthe MSMED Act, 2006, atong with the amount
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

d) The amount ofinterest due and payable for the period ofdelay in making payment [which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day duringthe year) but withoutadding rhe inter€st specified underthe MSMED Act,2O06

e) The amountof interest accrued and remainirg unpaid ar the end of each accounting year

0 The amount offurther interest remainingdue and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the smali enterprises, for rhe purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 ofthe MSMED Act, 2006

#DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTIRPRISES
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (,MSMED Act'). The disclosures
pursuantto the said MSMED Act are as follows:

213.44 208.08

Delhi



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE TIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from operations

sale of stores & spares

Sale oflubricant
Sale of tyre
labour receipts
Discount received
Less: Sales return
Less: Discount given

21 other income

lnterest income from financials assets measured at amortised cost

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

22 Purchase ofstock in trade

Stores and spares

Lubricant
Tyres

23 Change in inventory

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

24 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Workmen and staff welfare expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

3,826.97
B3 5.13

1.,339.76
37.79
29.44
2.t4
r..03

3,894.57
7A5.43

t,757.74
33.63
55.81
t7 .59

0.14

4.72
2.56

84.33
18.58

7 .24 1o2.92

For the year ended
3l March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

3,386.9+
7 +5.15

1,072.63

s.3 0 5.59 s,r44.73

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

4A7 39
409.63

618.72
4A7.39

77.76 131.3 3

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

289.+A
36.27
22.07

308.32
88.5 3

31.51

347 .82 42A35

q oo

E

ELE

3,358.05
813.18

7,734.36



IITDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

25 Finance costs

Interest expense from financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost
Interest on term loan
Interest on cash credit limit

26 Other expenses

Repair & maintenance:
- Plant and machinery
Power & fuel
Lease rental charges
Statutory auditor's remuneration
Bank charges
Business promotion
Donation
Newspaper & books periodicals
Packing & forwarding charges
Postage & telegram
Printing & stationery
Electricity and water charges
Insurance expenses
GST/Service Tax
Interest on TDS

Rates, fees & taxes
Freight & cartage
General expenses
Telephone expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Legal & professional charges
Sundry balances written off

27 Earnings per share

a. Profit/ooss) attributable to equity holders
Profit/(loss) aftributable to equity holders

b. Weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end ofthe year
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the
year for calculation ofbasic earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) - on profit/ [loss]
Nominal value per share (in Rs.)

For the year ended
31 March 2O19

For the year ended
31 March 2018

30.08
43.44

29.65
44.40

73.52 78.05

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

75.64
78.77
4.80
7.28
3.36
0.15

0.01
0.19
4.41
6.95
4.95
4.77
0.24
0.82

0.43
79.42

0.05
1.15

72.95
0.62

10.38

rc.a6
77.72
4.80
),.22

1.88
0.08
0.05
0.03
0.88
3.39
6.08
7.76

4.79
2.77
0.74
0.27

23.57
0.01
2.0t

72.41,
0.48

For the year ended
31 March 2019

10 5.89

For the year ended
31 March 2018

84.92

525,000

525,000

52 5,000

5r.21

s25,000

525,000

s25,000

76.77
10.0 0

9.75
10.00

&LE c
2-

Delh

170.76



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

28 Financial instruments ' Fair values and risk management

1. Credit risk

credit risk is the risk of financial Ioss to the company ifa customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its

contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the company. credit risk arises principally from trade receivables'

loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with bank and financial institutions and customers,

Trade receivables
customer credit risk is manaSed according to the company,s established policy, procedures and control relatin.g to customer

credit risk managemenL Credit quality ofi.urto,,"ri, 
".r"ssed 

based on an credit rating scorecard and individual credit

limits are defined in accordance with this assessment

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients ln addition, a large

number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Cash and cash equivalents
The company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 56.12 Lakhs at 31 March, 2019 (31 March 2018 Rs 38 27 Lakhsl The

cash andiash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution with high rating'

Deposits with banks and linancial institutions
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in

accordance with the company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and

within credit limits assigned to each counterparty

credit risk is managed on company wide basis. For bank/financial institutions, only high rated bank/institutions are

accepted,

Loans
The company has given loans and advances as security deposits. The credit risk is managed by the company in accordance

with the ComPany's Policy.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount oflinancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit

risk at the reporting date wasi
As at

3l March 2019
As at

3l March 2018

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months

Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Cash & cash equivalents
56.12 34.27
56.72 34.27

3,234.05 2,407.01

3 34.05

0oELC C

07.ol

t
I

q

d

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time

Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

Trade and other receivable



(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of

default is very low. Accordingly, loss allowance for impairment has notbeen recognised

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

Th" cotlrp"ny h". .ustomers with strong capacity to meetthe obligations and therefore the risk of default is negligible or nil'

F;il;;, ;;;"g"r""t believes that the;nimpaired amouns that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in

full. based on historical payment behavior a;d extensive analysis of customer credit risk Hence, no impairment loss has

been recognised during the reporting periods in respect of trade receivables

(iii) Ageing analysis oftrade receivables

The ageing analys is of the trade recelvables ls as below:

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss Provisions
There is no impairment loss provisions recognised during the year'

ELE

z g
os

As at 31 March
2 018

As at 31 March
2019

Ageing

Not due
7,004.44510,95

0-30 days past due
58s.19a84.94

31-60 days past due
1L6.74256.41

61-90 days past due
187.90893.56

91-180 days
5t2.73688.20

More than 180 days Past due
2,407.O13,234.O5Total



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

2. Liquidityrisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that

are settied by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,

that it will always have sufficient Iiquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under hoth normal and stressed conditions, without incurring

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management ofshort, medium and long term funding and

liquidity management requirements. The Company manages Iiquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and

reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assets and liabilities.

The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements of the Company

Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by Treasury. The Board of directors has established policies to manage liquidity risk and

the Company's treasury department operates in line with such policies. Any breaches of these policies are reported to the Board of

Directors. Long term liquidity position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken

according to the situation.

TrTically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days,

including the servicing of flnancial obligations, this excludes thc potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be

predicted, such as natural disasters.

The following are the contractual maturities o f fi nancial liabilities, based on contra'tual cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as

on 31 March 2019
Not later than one

year

Later than one year
and not later than

five years

Later than live
years

Total

Non'derivative Iinancial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade and other payables

497.70
2,554.42

322.3r 820,00
2,554.42

Total 3,052.51 322.31 3374.42

Contractual maturities of Iinancial liabilities as

on 3l March 2018
Not later than olle

year

Later than one year
and not later than

five years

Later than Iive
years

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings
Tradc and other payables

499.24
1,519.63

345.68 444.92
1,519.63

Total 2,014.47 345.68 2,364.55
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchaDge rates, interest rates will affect the Company's

income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and

control market sk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company The

regular reviews including diversifications of borrowings to mitigate the market risks are carried out considering the rates of

interest and other borrowing terms.

Currency risk
The Company has no financial assets/liabilities in foreign currency as at 31 March 2019, and 31 March 2018 and hence there

is no exposure to exchange rate fluctuation.

Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising mainly from long term borrowings with floating interest rates. The

Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with

changes in interest rates.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile ofthe Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Financial Assets
Fixed-rate instruments
Loans 7,443.90

Other financials assets 238.02 97.25

234.02 1,541.15

Financial Liabilities
Fixed-rate instruments
Borrowi 322.31 345.68

322.37 345.68

Variable-rate instruments
B 499.24

497.70 499.24

Total 820.00 a44.92

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company's fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk,

since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss

by the;mounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain

constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year'

Particulars Profit/ (loss), net of tax
50 bp increase 50 bp decrease

31'Mar-19
Cash credit from bank (7.67) 1.67

(1.67)

31-Mar-18
Secured term loan from bank
Cash credit from bank (7.67)

(r.67) 1.67

EL& c
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

29 Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments caa
31 March 2019

valueCavalueCa
Amortised

Cost
FVOCIFVTPLAmortised

Cost
FVOCIFVTPLParticulars

L,443.90
97.25

2,407.O1,

3A.27
3,234.05

56.72

238.02

L,720.90

3,9a6.433,5ZA.ZOt,720.90

345.68

497 .7 0

2,554.A2
61.69

2,395.143,436.51

Financial assets
Non-current
Investments
Loans

Other financialassets

Current
Trade receivables
cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL

Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings
Current
Borrowings
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
TOTAL

Assets and I iabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are

Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
TOTAL

?38.02

1,443.90
97.25

541.15

820.00 84+.92

820.00 a44.92

(b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the iudgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial

instrumentsthataremeasuredatamortisedcostandforwhichfairvaluesaredisclosedinthefinancial
statements.Toprovideanindicationaboutthereliabilityoftheinputsusedindeterminingfairvalue'the
companyhasclassifieditsfinancialinstrumentsintothethreelevelsprescribedundertheaccountingstandard'
An explanation ofeach level follows underneath the table'

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values' This

includesavaluationteamthathasoverallresponsibilityforoverseeingallsignificantfairvaluemeasurements
and reports directly to the Chief finance officer' The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable

lnprt, ,na uatr"tlon adjustments. Ifthird party information' such as broker quotes or pricing services' is used to

measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the

conclusionthatthesevaluationsmeettherequilementsoflndAs,includingthelevelinthefairvaluehierarchy
in which the valuations should be classified. significant valuation issues are reported to the company's audit

committee
oEL&o c
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3l March 2018

499.24
7,519.63

30.63

Financial assets
Loans

Other Financial Assets

TOTAL 23A.02



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

(c) Fair value offinancial assets and Iiabilities measured at

3l March 201831 March 2019

Fair valueCarrying
valueFair valueCarrying

Value
Particulars

7,443.90
97.25

2,407.07
38.27

23A.02

3,234.O5
56.12

238.02

3,234.05
56.12

3 9a6.433sza.203,52A,20

499.24
1519.63

30.63

345.68

499.24
1,519.63

30.63

322.31.

497.70
2,554.A2

61.69

322.37

2,395.142,395,143,436.513,436,57

Financial assets
Non-Current
Loans

other financialassets
Current
Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL

Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings
Current
Borrowings
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
TOTAL

Thecarryingamountsoftradereceivables,tradepayables,cashandcashequivalents'bankbalancesotherthan
cash,depositswithbanksandinterestaccruedbutnotdueandothercurrentfinancialassetsandcurrent
financial liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature

Non current financial assets whose the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values'

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value' the carrying amounts are equal to the fair

values.

ELo &
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Measurement of fair values
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Level t hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed

equity instruments and traded bonds that have quoted price

r"r,"i z, th" fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using

valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity

specificestimates.Ifallsignificantinputsrequiredtofairvalueaninstrumentareobservable,theinstrumentis
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data' the instrument is

includedinlevel3.ThefairvalueoffinancialassetsandliabilitiesincludedinLevel3isdeterminedin
accordancewithgenerallyacceptedPricingmodelsbasedondiscountedcashflowana|ysisusingpricesfrom
observable current market transacti;ns and dealer quotes of similar instruments. This level includes derivative

MTM assets/liabilities.
Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments include:

- the use ofquoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments'

- the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value ofthe estimated future cash flows based

on observable yield curves.

- the fair value of principal swaps is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date'

- the fairvalue ofthe financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis'

1,443.90
97.25

2,407.O1,

38.27
3,986.43

497.70
2,554.42

67.69

345.68

t'
Delhi



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMTTED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

[All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated]

30 Financial Risk Management

The company,s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings in domestic currency, trade payables and

other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's

princi;ai financial assets include loans, trade & other receivables, and cash and short_term deposits that derive directly

from its operations.

The Company is exposed to the following risk from its use of financial j nstruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note explains the sources ofriskwhich the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk

Risk Exposure arising
from

Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash

equivalents, trade
receivables, financial
assets measured at
amortised cost.

Ageing analysis
Credit ratings

Diversification ofbank
deposits, creditlimits
and letters of credit

Liquidity risk Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis

Availability of
borrowing facilities

Market risk - interest rate risk Borrowings at
variabie rates

SensitiviW analysis Diversification and

regular review of
borrowings

Risk management framework
The Compa;y,s activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address

such con;erns by developing adequate systems and practices. The Company's overall risk management program focuses

on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the company's financial

perfotmance,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility lor the establishment and oversight ofthe Company's risk management

framework, In order to institutionalize the risk management in the company, an elabolate Enterprise wide Risk

Management [ERM) framework has been developed. As a part of the implementation of ERM framework, an Enterprise

Risk anagement Committee IERMC) with various Executive Directors as its members has been constituted w,th an

objective to develop and monitor the company's risk management policies and stlengthen the risk management

framework. Enterprise rjsk management committee after deliberations has identified enterprise wide risk and various

action plans for short term as well as long term have been formulated to mitigate these risks

The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and updating the risk profile, monitoring the effectiveness of the risk

management framework and reviewing at least annually the implementation of the risk manaSement policy and

framework. The Committee reports regularly to the Board ofDirectors on its activities'

The company,s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to set

,ppropriit" iirk li.it, a;d controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and

,yat"aa 
"r" 

reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company's activities. The company,

through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control

environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

The company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and the use of non-

derivative rinancial instruments. compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis

(,oELE c
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rilotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

31 Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders

and benefits for other stakeholders and

- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of

capital through prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and

international financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business, The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines

as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders' equiry. The Board of Directors also monitors the

Ievel of dividends to equity shareholders.

In order to achieve the overall objective, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to

ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital

structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call

loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and

borrowings in the current period.

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of

financial ratios generally used by industry and by the rating agencies'

The Company monitors capitalusing gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of

long term and short term borrowings. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as

capital. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods was as follows;

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Total debts 8 2 0.00 844.92

Total equity 2,L31.89 2 047.75

0.3 8 0.47

oEL8
q

z
l'
>,

*

aed A.c''

Delhi

Net debt to equity ratio



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITID
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AIl amounts are in Lakh[s), unless otherwise stated)

Name of Realted Party Relationship
Sindhu Trade Links Limited Holdine company
saurabh Sindhu
Somvirsindhu
Dhruv Khod

Yashpal saharan

Directors/Key Management Personnel

Sarvesh Sindhu

SarojSindhu

sneha saharan

Aman Saharan

Relative of Key Management PeIsonnel

Gevra Automobiles
Sainik Mining &Allied Services Ltd.
v.V.Transport
M.S. & SONS

S S Transport
specturm Coal and Power Ltd.
Saharan Agro Farms Pvt Ltd.
Sudha Bio Power Pvt Ltd
Shyam Indus Power Solution Prt Ltd.

Sindhu Realtors PvL Ltd.
KonarkTraders
AC8 flt Ltd.

Enterprise where KMP or their relatives are
interested (other)

(b) Transactions the with Related Parties:

Natur€ ofTransactions
Holding

Company

Directors/K€y
Management

Personnel

Relative ofKey
Management

Personnel
Others Total

Salary 15.00 15.00 30.00

t1s.oo) (2.80) r17.80)

Purchase Fuel 10.32 10.32

r13.58) t13.s8)

Sale ofSpares, 0it & Tyre 1,905.01 1,227.71 3,132.72

t1,430.031 (2,08s.26) r3,515.291

Purchase of spares t37.09 137.09

r63.53) t63.s3)

Rent Paid 4.80 4.80

t4.80) (4.80)

e
dLEo

t'
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32 Related party disclosures
As per Ind AS 24, the dlsclosure oftransactions with related parties are given below:

(a) Listofrelated parties where control exists and also other related parties with whom

transaction hav€ taken place and relationshiPs

Figures in ( ) are as at 31st March, 2018



TNDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AIl amounts are in Lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

3 2 (c) Outstanding balances as at year end as on 31st March 2 019

32 (d)

Figures in ( ) are as at 31st March, 2018

Compensation of key Managerial Personnel
The remuneration ofdirector and other member of key managerial personnel during the year was as follows

Particulars 20ta-19 zotT -18

Short term employee benefits 30.00 77.40

Total 30.00 17.80

ELd

z E
e.

Particulars Holding KMP/Directors
Relatives of

KMP/Directors
Others Total

Trade Payable 140.73 740.73

t3.341 t3.341

Rent Payable 3.24

{0.7 2) (0.72)

Advance from Customers
t5.sB) t6.sBl

Salary Payable 21.44 77.70 39.74

(27.09) (27,0e)

Trade Receivable 2,799.13 575.87 2,815.00

(e72.82) [1,0s5.40] (2,028.22)

3,24

Oelhi



33 Payment to auditors:
Audit fees

GST/Service tax

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1.22

0.22

1.51

Sindhu

1,44

34 In the opinion ofthe management, the value on realisation of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of

business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known

liabilities has been made,

35 The company has no contingent liabilities outstanding as on 31 March 2019 and 31 Malch 2018,

As per our report ofeven date attached
For Nagar Goel & Chawla
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 009933N For and on behatf ofthe Board of Directors

EL&

*
Director
DIN:02291158
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